10-300 REV. (9/77)	VLR- 10/17/78	NRHP-2	11/79			
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE		NTERIOR	FOR NPS USE ONLY			
TIONAL PRC	ISTER OF HISTOR	RIC PLACES	RECEIVED			
	Y NOMINATION		DATE ENTERED			
SEE			ATIONAL REGISTER FORM	5		
P	TYPE ALL ENTRIES -	- COMPLETE APP	LICABLE SECTIONS			
NAME						
HISTORIC						
AND/OR COMMON	Wilton					
	Wilton					
	N .9 mils SE of Stamp intersection of Sta	pers;.4 mile E o ite Routes 630	of Piankatank River; .9 and 3.	mile SE of		
			NOTFOR PUBLICATION			
CITY, TOWN	Stampers		CONGRESSIONAL DIST First (Paul S. Trib			
STATE		CODE	COUNTY	CODE		
25024	Virginia	51	Middlesex	119		
CLASSIFIC	CATION					
CATEGORY	OWNERSHIP	STATUS	PRES	SENTUSE		
,DISTRICT	PUBLIC	XOCCUPIED	X_AGRICULTURE	— MUSEUM		
XBUILDING(S)		UNOCCUPIED	- COMMERCIAL	"PARK		
STRUCTURE SITE	-BOTH PUBLIC ACQUISITIO	WORK IN PROGR		X_PRIVATE RESIDENC		
OBJECT	_IN PROCESS	ACCESSIBLE		RELIGIOUS SCIENTIFIC		
	BEING CONSIDERED	YES: UNRESTRIC				
		XNO	MILITARY ,	OTHER		
OWNER O	FPROPERTY	i desta e a c	una internationation			
NAME	Mr. G. L. Ballantyr	ne, Jr.	· .,			
STREET & NUMBER						
	Wilton					
CITY, TOWN	Hartfield _		STATE Virginia 2	3071		
LOCATION	NOF LEGAL DESC		VII Gitting in			
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS.	ETC. Middlesex Cou	nty Courthouse				
STREET & NUMBER						
CITY,TO N			STATE			
	Saluda		Virginia 23	3149		
REPRESEN	ITATION IN EXIS	TING SURVE	10-11			
ΤΪΤLΕ						
(1)	<u>) Historic American I</u>	Buildings Surve	y Inventory			
			y Inventory FRAL — STATECOUNTYLOCA			

STATE

D. C.

CITY, TOWN

Washington



CON	DITION	CHECK ONE	CHECK (DNE
EXCELLENT X_GOOD FAIR	DETERIORATED RUINS UNEXPOSED	X —UNALTERED —ALTERED	X —ORIGINAL —MOVED	SITE DATE

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE Wilton, built in 1763 by William Churchill, is a story-and-a-half, T-shaped brick house, five bays long on the front, with a four-bay ell of equal length on the rear. Built of brick laid in Flemish bond above the beveled water table and in English bond below it, the corners, window jambs, chimney corners, and gauged jack arches of the house are constructed of rubbed brick. Nine-over-nine sash, recently replaced, light the first-floor windows, and 6/6 sash are used in the gabled dormers. The front portion of the house is covered with a gambrel roof and the rear with a hip-on-hip roof. Box cornices embellish the eaves. Interior end chimneys crown the main block, while a single square interior chimney of massive proportions serves the ell.

The plan of Wilton consists of two equal-sized rooms with a narrow central passage in the front block. This passage leads to a broad stair passage at the south end of the ell, with two equal-sized rooms behind it.

The most elaborate room is the west room of the main block. The fully paneled walls are treated with a single raised panel above and one below the symmetrical chair rail. A dentil cornice is carried around the room and is broken out over the chimney breast, which consists of fluted Roman Doric pilasters on high bases flanking a nine-panel overmantel and a later board shelf partly obscuring the original panels. The surround is plastered and whitewashed but otherwise undecorated, and the segmental-headed firebox has had its opening reduced and a flat lintel installed. A single large panel over each of the flanking closets visually sets off the more subtle overmantel arrangement. The passage is decorated with a molded wood cornice; an early 19th-century, double-beaded nailboard; and a symmetrical chair rail like that in the west parlor.

In the east room, a symmetrical chair rail is employed once again. In addition, the windows are treated with raised-panel shutters and bib panels, a raised panel over the head, and interior shutters. The molded wood cornice which encircles the room is broken around the heads of the windows. The mantel consists of an unsupported shelf above an architrave surround with a central fluted keystone. Here again a straight lintel has been used to fill in the original segmental head.

A round arch leads from the front passage to the stair passage. The open-string stair has a square newel with a molded cap, a molded walnut banister, three urn-and-column balusters to a tread, sawn brackets, and a raised-panel spandrel. Like some other contemporary houses of similar elaboration, the stair has three winders rather than a landing at the first turn. The soffits of the landing and of the upper flight are also decorated with raised panels. A symmetrical chair rail completes the embellishment of this room.

The south room of the ell has raised-panel window treatment like the east front room, but most of the other decoration was installed in the 20th century. It is unlikely that this room ever had much decoration or that the plain kitchen behind it ever had any. On the second floor are several very elaborate Federal mantels installed in the 20th century.

Although Wilton is thought to have undergone considerable evolution, it is evident from the brickwork that it was all built at once. Several changes are evident in the fabric. In the gables of the gambrel-roofed section are the outlines of a gable roof, yet there is no evidence of earlier roof framing in the attic. The east passage partition was moved 3½ feet west, but there is no structural evidence of an earlier stair in the floor boards or in the second-floor framing. It seems likely, therefore, that William Churchill took over construction of the house after the death of his father and changed the plans of the house, narrowing the passage and placing the stairs in the ell, which he probably made (See Continuation Sheet #1)

8 SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD	AF	REAS OF SIGNIFICANCE CH	IECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW	
_PREHISTORIC	ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC	COMMUNITY PLANNING	LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE	RELIGION
_1400-1499	ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC	CONSERVATION	LAW	SCIENCE
_1500-1599	AGRICULTURE	ECONOMICS	LITERATURE	SCULPTURE
_1600-1699	ARCHITECTURE	EDUCATION	MILITARY	SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
X 700-1799	ART	ENGINEERING	MUSIC	THEATER
-1800-1899	COMMERCE	EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT		TRANSPORTATION
_1900-	COMMUNICATIONS	INDUSTRY INVENTION	POLITICS/GOVERNMENT	OTHER (SPECIFY)
SPECIFIC DAT	ES 1763	BUILDER/ARC	ITECT	

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Wilton, a story-and-a-half brick building, was erected in 1763 by William Churchill, whose initials with the construction date are inscribed on the rear wall. Distinguished for its unusual size, well-crafted brickwork, and elaborate interior decoration, Wilton stands as one of the finest and least-altered of the late-Colonial plantation houses of Tidewater Virginia. The Churchills were prominent in Middlesex County politics and were ancestors of Winston Churchill.

The first William Churchill (c. 1650-1711) emigrated from England in 1674 and purchased land including the present Wilton tract from Richard Perrott's estate in 1688. This property spanned the Middle Peninsula from the Rappahannock to the Piankatank, with the original Churchill residence being built on the Rappahannock River side. Churchill's property descended to his son Armistead (1705-1763), a county Justice of the Peace, a vestryman of Christ Church Parish, and a Colonel in the Virginia Militia.

Shortly before Armistead's death, according to tradition, the original plantation house, Bushy Park, burned, and the family's residence was moved to the Piankatank River side of the property. Wilton was erected by Armistead's son, William Churchill, who signed and dated the house, in the year of his father's death. The builder, like his father, was a local justice, militia colonel and vestryman, and in addition served in the powerful position of clerk of the County Court from 1772 until his death in 1799.

The tradition that Wilton was built in several stages and finished in 1763 is disproven by the architectural evidence. The brickwork at Wilton is of a piece; there are no breaks anywhere in the exterior walls. One interior partition was moved, and the outlines of a gable roof show on the gambrel-shaped ends of the front block. Internal investigation shows, noreover, no evidence of stairs in the front passage and no evidence of earlier roof framing in the attic. It is therefore likely that William Churchill altered his plans during the construction of Wilton, making the ell larger than planned and inserting the stairs in it. There was then no need for à wide stair passage in the front, and the east passage wall was noved to create two equal-sized front rooms. At the same time the gable was altered to the more commodious and newly fashionable gambrel shape.

Upon William Churchill's death, Wilton was inherited by his son Thomas. During the son's brief tenure, the house was insured by the Mutual Assurance Society, whose documents confirm Wilton's existence at that time in its present configuration.

Wilton passed out of family hands in 1829, when the builder's granddaughter Elizabeth Edmonia Churchill Berkeley sold the 650-acre plantation to James Jones for \$3250. After a succession of other sales, the present owner's father acquired Wilton earlier in this century. It is presently undergoing some renovation.

9 MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

arper's Magazine. 57 (1878): 169. ddlesex County Deed Books 12, 16, 26, I. ddlesex County Will Books A, E, Z. tual Assurance Society Policies R2 V15 #599, R5 V43 #1938. ucek, Archie. "Wilton." Manuscript on file at Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission, n.d. (Mimeographed).

OGEOGRAPH	ICAL DA	TA		. :		
ACREAGE OF NOMINA	TED PROPERTY	8 acres				
QUADRANGLE NAM	E Wilto	on, Va.		QUADRANGLE S	SCALE _1:2	4000
UTM REFERENCE A [1, 8] [3] 7, ZONE EASTIN C 1 1 1	4210	4, 1 5, 4 3, 6, 0 IORTHING	B ZONE	EASTING	NORTHING	
ELLI	التنا	1 1 1 1 1	FLIL			
GL LL_		<u>I L L L L</u>	нЦЦ			
VERBAL BOUNDA Beginning at a po			of Wilton Cr	reek on the W	side of S	tate Route
3; thence extendi	int approx	cimately 1000° w	rovimately 75	SO': thence ex	tending 4	50' W:
thence extending	750' N: th	ence extending	500' E to po	oint of origin	•	•
		UNTIES FOR PROPERT				RIES
					-	
STATE		CODE	COUNTY	·		CODE
STATE		CODE	COUNTY			CODE
III FORM PREP	ARED B	Ŷ	`			
NAME / TITLE						
	irginia Hi	storic Landmark	s Commission		<u></u>	
ORGANIZATION	irginia Hi	storic Landmark	s Commission	DATE October	1978	
STREET & NUMBER	21 Governo	or Street	• :	теlерно (804) 79		
CITY OR TOWN				STATE		······································
R	ichmond			Virginia	23219	
STATE HIST		ECEDVATIO	VOFELCER	CED TIELC A	ΤΙΟΝΙ	,
	HE EVALUAT	ED SIGNIFICANCE OF	-	NITHIN THE STATE	15:	
NATION	AL	STAT	E	LOCAL _		
As the designated State hereby nominate this p						
criteria and procedures		/ (ang to the
STATE HISTORIC PRESE	IVATION OFFICE	RSIGNATURE				
		itive Director Landmarks Commi	ssion	DATE	0071	7 1978
FOR NPS USE ONLY				أليك في حجي فك الماقة		
I HEREBY CERTIFY T	HAT THIS PR	OPERTY IS INCLUDED	IN THE NATIONAL	REGISTER	e da anti- nomenta de la consecuta de la de la consecuta de la consecuta	
				DATE		
KEEPER OF THE	NATIONAL RE	GISTER		DATE		
CHIEF OF REGIS	RATION				s. <u></u>	
						n an

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

	ONLY

RECEIVED

DATE ENTERED

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

Wilton, Middlesex County, Virginia

CONTINUATION SHEET #1

ITEM NUMBER 6,7 PAGE 1

6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

(2) Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Survey 1972, 1973, 1978 State Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission 221 Governor Street Richmond, Virginia 23219

7. DESCRIPTION

longer than was originally intended, and changing the gable roof to the more useful, newly fashionable gambrel shape. He then signed the house on a recessed brick near the top of the north wall of the ell: "E--/WC 1763."

East of the house is an early pyramidal-roofed frame smokehouse in dilapidated condition, and a mid-19th-century, board-and-batten kitchen stands due north of the smokehouse. West of the house is a weatherboarded log building recently moved to the south.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The register bounds have been drawn to include the open area immediately surrounding the house, including the old road bed and a cemetery several hundred feet southwest of the dwelling.

